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REPORT OF BDO CANADA LIMITED TO THE COURT 

May 4, 2020 

INTRODUCTION  

1. Pursuant to the Honourable Justice Penny dated January 8, 2019 (the “Order”), BDO 

Canada Limited (in such capacity “BDO” or the “Trustee”) was appointed as substitute trustee in 

the bankruptcies of William Player (“Player”), and his spouse Joanne Harpell (“Harpell”), 

replacing the former trustee Morgan & Partners Inc. (“MPI”). Attached as Schedule “1” is a copy 

of the said Order. 

2. This report is filed by BDO in response to the application of Ray Jarvis (“Jarvis”), 1923129 

Ontario Inc. (“192”), 1981262 Ontario Inc. (“198”), 2209326 Ontario Inc. (“220”), 2307400 

Ontario Inc (“230”) and 2557295 Ontario Inc. (“255” or “Noble House”) (collectively the 

“Applicants”) to, among other things, remove the cations registered by BDO pursuant to the 

Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (the “BIA”) against the following seven properties (collectively 

the “Cautioned Properties”): 

(a) 3239 Penetanguishene Road, Craighurst, Ontario (the “Penetanguishene 

Property”) - registered owner Costellos of Craighurst Inc. (“Costellos”) (abstract 

of title attached as Schedule “2”) 

(b) 2049 Horseshoe Valley Road West, Craighurst, Ontario (the “2049 Horseshoe 

Property”) - registered owner 192 (abstract of title attached as Schedule “3”); 

(c) 2019 Horseshoe Valley Road, Craighurst, Ontario (the “2019 Horseshoe 

Property”) - registered owner 198 (abstract of title attached as Schedule “4”); 

(d) 205 Ontario Street, Burks Falls, Ontario (the “205 Ontario Property”) - registered 

owner 220 (abstract of title attached as Schedule “5”); 

(e) 89 Ontario Street, Burks Falls, Ontario (the “89 Ontario Property”) - registered 

owner 220 (abstract of title attached as Schedule “6”); 

(f) 14 Manitoba Street, Bracebridge, Ontario (the “14 Manitoba Property”) - 

registered owner 220 (abstract of title attached as Schedule “7”); and 

TAB I
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(g) 3 Crescent Road, Huntsville, Ontario, (the “3 Crescent Property”) - registered 

owners 220 and 230, 50% each, as tenants in common (abstracts of title attached as 

Schedule “8”). 

BACKGROUND - PLAYER: 

3. Player was instrumental in, perhaps, one of the largest real-estate fraud schemes in 

Canadian history perpetrated between 1980 to 1982, in Toronto. Player plead guilty to 35 counts 

of fraud and received a 15-year prison sentence. Attached as Schedule “9” is a copy of the 1987 

decision R. v. Player, in which the Honourable Justice Callaghan described the fraud: 

The size of the various frauds is, in aggregate, staggering. Mr. Player has pleaded guilty to 
counts involving in excess of $200,000,000.00. The various frauds, as indicated, were 
perpetrated over a period of two to three years. Each fraud was complex and the result of 
a sophisticated degree of planning. The frauds involved manipulation of others and many 
nominees were used in the course of their perpetration. 

While Mr. Player was involved with others who acted as principals to a certain degree, 
there is no doubt on the material that has been filed and admitted that in relation to the 
counts before the court, he was the prime mover, if not the directing mind in each. 

… 

It appears from what I have heard today that Mr. Player and those associated with him 
extracted funds from one or more publicly regulated companies and used those funds for 
their own benefit. This was generally accomplished by using non-arm’s length ‘flips’. A 
‘flip’, as I understand it, is the sale of real property immediately following its purchase. 
The purpose of a ‘flip’ is to effect a false price increase…Thus, following the ‘flip’, the 
artificially increased value of the real property was used as the basis for seeking mortgage 
loans in respect of the property, purportedly to finance its acquisition. These mortgage 
loans provided most of the funds that Mr. Player and those working with him used for their 
own benefit. Nominees were used from time to time by Mr. Player to conceal the extent of 
his involvement in the transactions. On occasion, rather than providing a mortgage loan, 
the trust company or its subsidiary or affiliated company would purchase a flipped property 
outright. In other transactions, Mr. Player’s nominee would purchase the property himself 
and sell it to Mr. Player, taking back a mortgage, which would then be sold to the trust 
company. There were various methods of implementing this scheme. 

2



CHRONOLOGY: 

4. On February 26, 2016, the Honourable Justice Diamond granted judgment against Player, 

on consent, in favour of 1719499 Ontario Inc. (“171”) in the all-inclusive sum of $1,000,000 plus 

post-judgment interest (the “171 Judgment”), a copy of which is attached as Schedule “10”. 

5. On April 16, 2016, Costellos was incorporated. Attached as Schedule “11” is a copy of 

the Corporation Profile Report of Costellos. Player is listed as an officer and director thereof. 

Attached hereto as Schedule “12” is a copy of the Articles of Incorporation for Costellos, pursuant 

to which, as at the date of Costellos’ incorporation, Player was the sole shareholder of 100 common 

shares.  

6. On May 5, 2016, Costellos purchased the Penetanguishene Property under power of sale 

from 781526 Ontario Inc. for $1,300,000.  

7. On September 6, 2016, about a week before attending on an examination in aid of execution 

under the 171 Judgment, Player purportedly entered into a loan agreement with Brian Tattersall 

(“Tattersall”), a copy of which is attached as Schedule “13”, whereby Tattersall would loan 

$600,000 to Player for the purpose of developing the Penetanguishene Property. Among other 

things, pursuant to this alleged loan agreement (the “Tattersall Loan Agreement”): 

(a) The loan would be made in two parts: (a) $300,000, to be spent as follows: $140,000 

to pay the first and second mortgagee and prepay interest, $50,000 paid to 

consultants to prepare the site and get site plan and approval and engineering of the 

site, and create a separate parcel of land for the “Tim’s building”, the balance to 

Player for existing “outstanding bills”; and (b) the remaining $300,000 to be 

advanced on site approval for the “Tim’s site” for support of the Tim’s operations 

and existing facilities; 

(b) If the second tranche of funds was not advanced, the amount owing would be 

$425,000, and all other terms and conditions would apply; 

3



(c) Player would repay Tattersall $850,000 by September 1, 2017. The payment would 

be made from the sale of the Tim’s property, “there is an existing agreement of 

Purchase and Sale for the property”. If the closing was delayed past September 1, 

2017, then interest would accrue at 5% per annum; and 

(d) Player agreed to assign “the share of Costellos of Craighurst to Tattersall as security 

for this loan and upon repayment of the loan the shares will be reassigned to 

Player”. 

8. Attached hereto as Schedule “14” are copies of a certificate, Resolution of the Director 

and Assignment of Common Shares all dated September 6, 2016, purportedly assigning Player’s 

100 common shares in Costellos to Tattersall as security for a loan in the amount of $850,000 

(collectively, the “Tattersall Share Assignment”). 

9. As appended to Tattersall’s proof of claim (at Schedule “28” herein), there were 

purportedly three advances made under the Tattersall Loan Agreement: 

(a) September 9, 2016 - cheque from Tattersall to Costellos in the sum of $10,000; 

(b) September 12, 2016 - certified cheque from Tattersall to Costellos in the sum of 

$140,000 (the “Tattersall Certified Cheque”); and 

(c) September 13, 2016 - cheque from “John T. Wallwin Holding Ltd.” to Costellos in 

the sum of $150,000, which does not appear to be signed by Tattersall. 

Suspiciously, there is no mention of “Wallwin” in the Tattersall Loan Agreement.  

10. Player has only disclosed one bank account for Costellos, which was maintained with Bank 

of Montreal (2305-1995-505) (the “BMO Costellos Account”). As far as the Trustee is aware, 

this is the only bank account for Costellos. Attached as Schedule “15” are copies of the account 

statements for the BMO Costellos Account from May 31, 2016 to July 31, 2018, together with the 

applicable cancelled cheques.  
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11. Suspiciously, in September 2016, there were only two deposits into the BMO Costellos 

Account: (a) September 9, 2016 for $10,000, and (b) September 15, 2016 for $150,000. 

Furthermore, for the balance of 2016, only $52,486.32 was deposited into the BMO Costellos 

Account, and nowhere in the account statements herein does it reflect any $140,000 entry. It 

therefore appears that the Tattersall Certified Cheque was never deposited into the BMO Costellos 

Account, and that, at most, Tattersall only advanced $10,000 into the BMO Costellos Account 

under the purported Tattersall Loan Agreement. As well, the other $150,000 deposit on September 

15, 2016 into the BMO Costellos Account appears to be from “Wallwin”.   

12. Attached as Schedule “16” is an enlarged and more legible copy of the back of the 

Tattersall Certified Cheque. The trustee was unable to improve the legibility of this copy any 

further. There appears to be a handwritten scribble thereon. BDO has compared that with other 

documents bearing Player’s signature, and it does not appear to be one and the same. This 

handwritten scribble could, perhaps, be an endorsement, but BDO does not have sufficient 

information to confirm same, and if so, to determine the ultimate whereabouts of these funds. 

13. On September 14, 2016, through its counsel, 171 conducted an examination in aid of 

execution of Player. Attached as Schedule “17” is a copy of the transcript (pgs. 6-37), wherein 

Player gave the following evidence: 

(a) “I go to work every day, right. I go to work every day, I don’t have an 

occupation…I’m a -- well, what am I. I’m a facilitator. I’m a consultant. I’m a --

…It’s all related to real estate” (pgs. 7-8); 

(b) Player’s income was derived from “deals I put together with other people, yes. 

Except for one. Okay. That is my income -- sorry, that is how my income is…” (pg. 

10); 

(c) Player had not filed tax returns since 1982, and he had no personal bank account. 

His income in 2015 was approximately $200,000 (pg. 10-11);  
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(d) There were other judgments outstanding against Player (pg. 8); 

(e) As of May 1, Costellos purchased a two-acre parcel of land and a 7,000 foot 

building in Craighurst. The owner of Costellos were Player and Harpell (pgs. 26-

27); 

(f) The shares of Costellos were “assigned to a lender” (pg. 27); 

(g) The plan was to sever the property so that Costellos retained the part where the 

7,000 square foot building was, and the other portion where the Tim Horton’s was 

planned to go, was under agreement to be sold for $1,450,000, conditional on 

obtaining necessary approvals and getting a lease from Tim Horton’s (pg. 32-34); 

(h) Player obtained $600,000 financing to prepare the site to do the planning process 

and obtain the “necessary services” from Tattersall and “Craig Wallwin”. When 

asked whether that financing was unsecured, Player responded, “Well, it’s 

unsecured and it’s secured…”, because of the share pledge they have control of the 

corporation and the land (pg. 35); and 

(i) At the end of the process, Player expected to have equity in the property in the range 

of $750,000 to $1,000,000 (pg. 35-36). 

14. Attached as Schedule “18” is a copy of an undated Summary of Loan Request from Noble 

House, seeking a $5,500,000 loan secured by two separate mortgages against the 3 Crescent 

Property (registered owners - 220 and 230). Therein, there is a contract between Noble House, as 

owner, and Costellos, as contractor, dated July 1, 2017, for various work to be completed at the 3 

Crescent Property with a contract price of about $2,474,000.  

15. On October 30, 2017, the BMO Costellos Account and cancelled cheques reflect: (a) a 

payment of $27,500 to Tattersall, and (b) a $27,500 payment to John T. Wallwin Holding. As will 

be discussed further below, nowhere in Tattersall’s proof of claims does he disclose any payment 

from Costellos or Player of $27,500, or any other repayment on his alleged “loan”. 
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16. Pursuant to an ex parte motion by HarbourEdge Mortgage Corporation and a bankruptcy 

application made against William Player (“Player”) commenced January 2018, The Fuller Landau 

Group Inc. (the “Interim Receiver”) was appointed as interim receiver pursuant to S.46(1) of the 

BIA of certain assets, undertakings and interest and properties of Player, by the Order of Justice 

Honourable Conway dated February 22, 2018 (the “Interim Receivership Order”). Attached as 

Schedule “19” is a copy of the First Report of the Interim Receiver dated December 27, 2018 

(without schedules). 

17. On February 8, 2018, while the bankruptcy application was pending, but prior to the 

Interim Receivership Order, Player executed a Resolution of the Director of Costellos authorizing 

the company to enter into an Amending Agreement dated February 8, 2018 between Costellos, 

Player and Tattersall (the “2018 Amending Agreement”). Attached as Schedule “20” is a copy 

of the resolution and 2018 Amending Agreement.  

18. The preamble of the 2018 Amending Agreement states that “the parties entered into an 

Agreement dated the 6th day of September, 2016 regarding a loan by Tattersall to the Corporation 

in the amount of $850,000.00 in exchange for an assignment of Player’s One Hundred (100) 

Common shares in the capital of the Corporation to Tattersall”. It further provides, among other 

things, that in consideration of the sum of $1.00: 

(a) “As long as Player remains as sole director and officer of the Corporation, and 

provided that the Properties mentioned in the [Tattersall Loan Agreement] have not 

paid any dividends or profits to Player, that Player will be allowed to pay personal 

expenses and draw an income from the Corporation in the amount of any free cash 

flow”; 

(b) “All property purchases, joint ventures, property or corporate partnerships entered 

into by Costello’s, guarantees on loans, etc. will be pre-approved by Tattersall and 

without Tattersall’s approval, the Corporation may not enter into the transaction 

until the Tattersall Loan is repaid in full”; and 
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(c) “That Tattersall acknowledges and approves the partnership between the 

Corporation and Noble House Development Corporation in various business 

ventures and collaborations”. 

19. Less than 2 weeks before Player attended on an examination under s. 163 of the BIA, 198, 

as purchaser, Tattersall, as vendor, and Costellos entered into a purported Share Purchase 

Agreement dated March 11, 2018 (the “198 Share Purchase Agreement”), a copy of which is 

attached as Schedule “21”. It appears to be signed by Tattersall, in his personal capacity, and 

Jarvis, on behalf of 198. Pursuant to the 198 Share Purchase Agreement, 198 agreed to assign 

Tattersall’s 1000 common shares (not 100 as reflected in the Share Assignment) for payment of 

$350,000 by certified cheque on closing; namely, December 14, 2018, or such further date as the 

parties may agree upon.  

20. The Share Purchase Agreement refers to an appended post-dated “Employment 

Agreement” dated December 11, 2018 (the “Employment Agreement”) executed by Jarvis, on 

behalf of Costellos, in favour of Player, whereby Costellos agreed to pay Player a salary of $8,000 

and “an assistant” $2,000 per month, plus Player’s cell phone expenses, all vehicle costs, provide 

a vehicle, to Player and “his assistant”, pay for all medical expenses of Player and “his assistant” 

and provide an office. It also states: 

The Employee shall earn all income from consulting, negotiating of any real estate deals, 
negotiating any real estate financings, and the employee shall introduce Ray Jarvis and 
John Jarvis to all of the Employees financial, development and real estate contacts. 

21. The Trustee is neither aware of nor has any record of any demands for repayment, Notices 

of Intention to Enforce Security pursuant to section 243 of the BIA, or notices of sale under section 

63 of the Personal Property Security Act (the “PPSA”) issued by Tattersall against Player leading 

up to the above purported sale of shares. Attached as Schedule “22” is a copy of the PPSA registry 

search on William Player, which does reflect any registration in favour of Tattersall.  
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22. On March 20, 2018, counsel for the Interim Receiver conducted an examination of Player 

pursuant to s. 163 of the BIA. Attached as Schedule “23” is a copy of the transcript of the 

examination (pgs. 19-37), in which Player gave the following evidence: 

(a) Player pays “rent” to his stepson for his personal residence of approximately 

$2,500-$2,600 monthly, from the BMO Costellos Account (pg. 20, qq. 111-114); 

(b) Player was and always has been the sole officer and director of Costellos (pg. 21, 

qq. 119-120); 

(c) When asked whether he was the sole shareholder of Costellos, Player’s response 

was, “Yes. No, Sorry. I was. I’m not.” (pgs. 21-22, q. 121); 

(d) Player went on to say that he was a shareholder of Costellos with Tattersall, that 

the shares were assigned to Tattersall “for a loan”, and that when the loan was paid 

off, Player would be an 80% shareholder and Tattersall would be 20% shareholder 

(pg. 22, qq. 122-127). Player further deposed that he believed that, as of that date, 

he was a shareholder of Costellos and that he prepared the related “agreement” (pg. 

24, qq. 138, 140-142); 

(e) The nature of Costellos business was “a general contractor”, “It has -- and it owns 

3--it develops -- it’s a developer”, and that it owned and was developing the 

Penetanguishene Property, which was a redevelopment of a residential property, 

and was trying to get approval for a Tim Horton’s (pg. 27, qq. 168-169);  

(f) Costellos had a construction contract building a mini storage in Huntsville, Ontario 

with Noble House (pg. 29, q. 80); 

(g) Player took a monthly $10,000 management fee from Costellos (pg. 30, q. 191); 

(h) When asked whether he had a management contract with Costellos, Player said no. 

When pressed further, Player stated “I’m sorry, I’m a sole shareholder. I’m a sole 
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officer and director. And I believe I’m the sole shareholder. Brian Tattersall 

approves everything I do” (pg. 30, qq. 192-193); 

(i) Costellos owns 50% of Noble House. Noble house owns the 3 Crescent Road 

Property, and “One in Bracebridge and two in Burk’s Falls”. Player could not recall 

those addresses (pgs. 31-32, qq. 196-207); 

(j) Costellos owns 50% of 198, which owns a piece of vacant land under development 

in Bracebridge (pg. 33, qq. 209-215); and 

(k) All of the papers that would show ownership and the purchase of all these properties 

were at Jarvis’ office, and he was the other 50% owner of Noble House and the 

other officer and director of Noble House (pg. 35, qq. 223-230).   

23. After the Interim Receivership Order, and just prior to the hearing of the Bankruptcy 

Application scheduled for April 6, 2018, Player filed a Notice of Intention to Make a Proposal on 

April 4, 2018, (“NOI”) and MPI was appointed as the trustee. 

24. On April 6, 2018, by Order of the Honourable Justice Hainey, the Interim Receivership 

Order was amended, whereby all assets, undertakings, interest and properties of Player became 

subject to the Interim Receivership (the “Amended Interim Receivership Order”), a copy of 

which is attached as Schedule “24”. 

25. After obtaining an order extending the deadline to file a proposal, on June 19, 2018, Player 

filed a proposal to make a lump sum payment of $2.5 million to his creditors within 60 days of 

Court approval (the “Proposal”). Attached hereto as Schedule “25” is a copy of MPI’s report on 

the Proposal, which indicates, among other things: 

(a) Player was involved with three active corporations: Costellos, Noble House and 

198; 
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(b) Player was the only director and shareholder of Costellos. In September 2016, 

Player assigned his shares in Costellos to “a creditor as security” for one of his 

debts. Costellos owns the Penetanguishene Property, which had four tenants to 

service expenses and from which Player drew an income. The company had 

actively been attempting to develop a Tim Horton’s franchise, but due to zoning 

requirements, it was not expected to be developed for several years. Costellos 

leased a 2018 GMC Truck, which was guaranteed by Player; 

(c) Costellos held 50% of the shares of Noble House. Ray Jarvis Co. was the other 50% 

owner. Player was not a director of Noble House. Noble House was in the course 

of being amalgamated with “another corporation, which owns a number of 

properties in Bracebridge, Burks Falls, Chelmsford and Huntsville”. Noble House’s 

assets included: the 205 Ontario Property, the 89 Ontario Property, the 14 Manitoba 

Property, and the 3 Crescent Property; and 

(d) 198 was incorporated in November 2017, Player was the director of the corporation, 

and an indirect shareholder through Noble House, which held a 50% interest in 198. 

The other 50% shareholder of 198 was Table Rock Investments Inc. 

26. The source of the funding was purportedly pursuant to a Letter of Intent between 198, as 

“buyer” and MPI as trustee for the creditors of Player, as “seller” dated April 2, 2018 (the “LOI”), 

a copy of which is attached as Schedule “26”. The LOI was signed by both Player and Jarvis on 

behalf of 198. Pursuant to the LOI: 

(a) 198 was prepared to pay $2.5 million for Player’s 40% interest in the profits of a 

development property located on Ardagh Rd., Barrie, Ontario, and Player’s 50% 

interest in the profits of another development in the Durham region (both of which 

are referenced in the September 2018 Agreement); and 

(b) The agreement was conditional on “Brian Tattersall releasing his interest in the 

Ardagh Rd. asset”. 
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27. On May 16, 2018, a consortium mortgage in favour of about 21 lenders in the sum of 

$3,645,000 (the “First Consortium Mortgage”) and a mortgage in favour of Deborah Brennan in 

the sum of $490,000 (the “Brennan Mortgage”) were registered against title to the 

Penetanguishene Property (registered owner  Costellos), the 2049 Horseshoe Property (registered 

owner - 192), and the 2019 Horseshoe Property (registered owner - 198), and Jarvis, John Jarvis, 

Player and Re/Max North Country Realty Inc. were listed as guarantors. Attached as Schedule 

“27” are copies of these mortgage registrations. However, from reviewing the BMO Costellos 

Account (at Schedule “15” herein), notwithstanding the registration of these mortgages, the 

deposits for all of May 2018 only totaled $153,324.61, and the deposits for all of June 2018 only 

totaled $71,387.72. Consequently, the Trustee cannot confirm whether the funds were advanced 

or what happened to the funds if they were advanced. The First Consortium Mortgage has since 

been deleted from title.  

28. Tattersall filed a proof of claim with MPI in the Proposal dated June 27, 2018 and voting 

letter in favour of the Proposal, copies of which is attached as Schedule “28”. Therein, Tattersall 

claimed to have an unsecured claim of $872,194 and a secured claim of $10.00 for the shares of 

Costellos, and in a handwritten note stated, “real price undetermined as per Security agreement” 

(the “First Proof of Claim”).  

29. The meeting of creditors was held on July 9, 2018. The meeting was held at the office of 

MPI in Barrie, Ontario. Among others, Jarvis was present at the meeting.  

30. Player signed an amended proposal dated July 9, 2018, the date of the creditors meeting, 

essentially for payment of $2,500,000 to the estate, which included certain conditions agreed to at 

the meeting of creditors, including that an additional $25,000 deposit be paid to the estate, totalling 

$50,000, on a non-refundable basis (the “Amended Proposal”). This second $25,000 payment was 

made out by 198 to MPI on July 9, 2018 and endorsed by both Player and Jarvis. 

31. The hearing for Court approval of the Proposal was initially to be held on August 8, 2018. 
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32. One of the creditors of Player, brought a motion to oppose the approval of the Proposal 

based on allegation of fraud he was asserting against Player, as well as complaints regarding MPI’s 

conduct and report. Another significant judgment creditor also sought to adjourn the Proposal 

approval motion to provide more time to review the valuation of Player’s property. The court 

ultimately agreed to adjourn the hearing to approve the proposal until October 5, 2018. The hearing 

was adjourned once again to January 3, 2019. 

33. The inspectors of Player’s estate requested a meeting with the Proposal Trustee, which was 

held on October 10, 2018. At the meeting, the inspectors discussed whether it made sense to 

continue with the Proposal without any firm funding commitment from Pace, the purported 

financier of the proposal, especially in light of recent news that Pace had been placed in 

administration with the Deposit Insurance Corporation of Ontario. 

34. The inspectors instructed the Proposal Trustee to request that Player make an additional 

non-refundable deposit of $100,000 no later than 5 pm on October 15, 2018. The inspectors further 

instructed the Proposal Trustee to schedule a meeting of creditors on October 24, 2018, to discuss 

whether the creditors wish to continue to support the Proposal. Player did not make the additional 

non-refundable deposit. 

35. By letter dated October 23, 2018, a copy of which is attached as Schedule “29”, Goodmans 

LLP, counsel to the Deposit Insurance Corporation of Ontario in its capacity as the Administrator 

of PACE, advised 198’s counsel that it would not be funding any loan, purportedly to 198, 192 

and Costellos, as borrowers, and secured by mortgages against the Penetanguishene Property, the 

2049 Horseshoe Property and the 2019 Horseshoe Property, and guaranteed by Jarvis and Player, 

and stated: 

Further, the Administrator has learned that the information on the PACE credit request 
forms concerning ownership of the Borrowers, and about the true purpose of the proposed 
loans, was inaccurate. In fact, the Administrator has learned that the only real purpose of 
the loan is to fund the commercial proposal filed by William Player with his creditors under 
the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, that William Player is the sole shareholder of one of 
the Borrowers and an indirect shareholder of at least one of the other Borrowers, and that 
William Player is an officer and director of all 3 borrowers. Thus, notwithstanding the 
appearance of a loan to 3 entities not affiliated with William Player and guaranteed by Ray 
and John Jarvis, this loan is really to William Player to fund his proposal. 
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36. At the meeting of creditors on October 24, 2018, the Proposal Trustee advised the creditors 

that Jarvis was still trying to arrange funding from Pace. 

37. The creditors agreed to give Player until October 31, 2018, to make the additional non-

refundable deposit and, if it was not made by that date, the Proposal Trustee was instructed to 

prepare a Material Adverse Change Report. 

38. On November 5, 2018, the Proposal Trustee issued a Material Adverse Change Report, and 

Player made a voluntary assignment in bankruptcy.  

39. On December 17, 2018 a second consortium mortgage in favour of about 21 lenders in the 

sum of $4,745,000 (the “Second Consortium Mortgage”) was registered against the 

Penetanguishene Property, the 2049 Horseshoe Property (registered owner - 192), and the 2019 

Horseshoe Property (registered owner - 198), and Jarvis, John Jarvis, Player and Re/Max North 

Country Realty Inc. were listed as guarantors. Attached as Schedule “30” are copies of these 

mortgage registrations.  

40. On January 8, 2019, BDO was appointed as substitute trustee by Order of the Honourable 

Justice Penny. 

41. Tattersall filed an amended second proof of claim in the bankruptcy of Player with the 

Trustee dated April 12, 2019, a copy of which is attached as Schedule “31” (the “Second Proof 

of Claim”). Contrary to the First Proof of Claim, in which Tattersall purported to have an 

unsecured claim of $872,194 and a secured claim of $10.00, the Second Proof of Claim claims 

$500,000 against Player on an unsecured basis. It is unclear how Tattersall arrived at that figure. 

The Second Proof of Claim curiously appends the following: 

(a) A copy of the Share Purchase Agreement; 

(b) An Assignment of Interest and Promissory Note agreement dated December 20, 

2018, whereby Noble House agreed to pay “John T Wallwin Holdings Limited” 

and Tattersall $350,000 plus interest by December 31, 2021, secured by a “first 

charge condo loan” on certain units of the 3 Crescent Property (registered owners 
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220 and 230) in the sum of $346,000 and guarantees from Jarvis, John Jarvis and 

Remax North Country Realty Inc.; 

(c) A release executed by Tattersall in favour of Costellos dated December 31, 2021 

stating that 198 has acquired all of his shares in Costellos, and releasing Costellos, 

its shareholders, officers, directors and employees from any claims Tattersall may 

have relating to his “association with the Corporation”; and  

(d)  Purported advances from Tattersall to Noble House as follows: (a) $100,000 on 

September 6, 2018, and (b) $175,000 on December 21, 2018.  

42. By email dated February 1, 2019, a copy of which is attached as Schedule “32”, Tattersall 

advised the Trustee, among other things, as follows: 

(a) “I had lent Bill 325K back in 2015 winter and couldn’t get back money etc. In 2016 

he agreed and gave me possession of 100% of the shares if I was not repaid by Sept 

2017. I of course was not paid and I took and received the shares along with 

agreement that I was not on the mortgage nor responsible for it”; and 

(b) In the summer of 2018, Jarvis approached him about buying the shares for “next to 

nothing” and “I agreed to sell them the shares for 350K but I had to give them 175K 

in cash in exchange for a 350K 1 year mortgage. That’s what I did”. 

43. By Order of the Honourable Justice Hainey dated February 20, 2020, a copy of which is 

attached as Schedule “33”, on application of Pace, msi Spergel Inc. was appointed as receiver 

pursuant to section 243 of the BIA and section 101 of the Courts of Justice Act over all of the 

assets, undertakings and property of Noble House, 220 and 230, which includes 4 of 7 of the 

Cautioned Properties; namely, the 3 Crescent Property, the 205 Ontario Property, the 89 Ontario 

Property and the 14 Manitoba Property.
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BMO COSTELLOS ACCOUNT: 

44. The BMO Costellos Account statements (at Schedule “15” herein) reflect the following 

payments made to entities affiliated with Jarvis: 

45. As well, there are several large wire transfers out of the BMO Costellos Account, in which 

the recipient is unknown. These wire transfers total $246,000, and took place from April 16 to July 

16, 2018, during the proposal period of Player, as summarized below: 

(a) April 16, 2018 - $31,000; 

(b) April 23, 2018 - $100,000; 

(c) April 23, 2018 - $40,000; 

(d) May 3, 2018 - $15,000; 

(e) July 16, 2018 - $35,000; and 

(f) July 16, 2018 - $25,000. 

Date Payor Payee (Receipt of Funds) Amount Description

9-Nov-17 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. Re/Max North Country Realty 30,000.00$   Cheque #104

11-Dec-17 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. 2557295 Ontario Inc. 9,605.00 Cheque #137

5-Feb-18 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. 2557295 Ontario Inc. 50,000.00 Cheque #197

13-Mar-18 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. 2557295 Ontario Inc. 35,000.00 Cheque #224

26-Mar-18 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. 1981262 Ontario Inc. 7,401.00 Cheque #229

26-Mar-18 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. Re/Max North Country Realty 4,000.00 Cheque #235

2-Apr-18 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. 2557295 Ontario Inc. 20,000.00 Cheque #237

24-Apr-18 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. Re/Max North Country Realty 8,000.00 Cheque #249

2-May-18 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. Noble House Development Corp. 8,000.00 Cheque #266, Chq comment: Loan

27-May-18 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. Remax Orillia 50,000.00 Cheque #276, Chq comment: 430 

Couchiching Road

13-Jun-18 Costellos of Craighurst Inc. Noble House Development Corp. 22,000.00 Cheque #280

Total 244,006.00$ 
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46. Furthermore, the account statements herein for the BMO Costellos Account are replete 

with apparent personal withdrawals, all the way through to July 2018, which was the last statement 

produced to the Trustee. These withdrawals include, among others, payments to the LCBO, various 

restaurants, gas, Loblaws, Costco and pre-authorized monthly car payments of $2,834.35.  

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION: 

47. Attached as Schedule “34” are copies of letter from the Trustee to Player dated February 

11, 2019, March 20, 2019, and July 2, 2019 wherein the Trustee requested Player provide, among 

other things, the following information, all of which remains outstanding: 

(a) Minute Books, shareholder registers and financial books and records for all 

corporations in which he held or holds and interest in, including as director or 

president; 

(b) Financial Statements for Costellos from 2016 to present; 

(c) Bank Statements from January 2018 to present for Costellos; 

(d) Documentation supporting his interest in Noble House; 

(e) The reporting letter of May 2018 regarding the blanket mortgage on the 

Penetanguishene Property; and  

(f) Contact information for his accountant. 
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CONCLUSIONS: 

48. The Trustee is concerned that a complex and sophisticated scheme has been implemented, 

designed to shelter Player’s interest in the Cautioned Properties, and their affiliated entities, from 

the reach of Player’s creditors and Trustee, for among others, the following reasons: 

(a) Player has a noted history as the directing mind of a complex real-estate fraud 

scheme, culminating in a conviction on 35 counts of fraud and a 15-year sentence, 

wherein he used nominees to conceal the extent of his involvement and benefit; 

(b) It appears Player has made a concerted effort to avoid a significant financial “paper-

trail”. He has not filed tax returns since 1982 and has no personal bank account. He 

has also failed to respond to the Trustee’s request for various financial information; 

(c) There are concerns with the bona fides of the Tattersall Loan Agreement, and 

Tattersall Share Assignment as “security”: 

(i) It took place about one week before 171 conducted an examination in aid 

of execution pursuant to the 171 Judgment, and at a time when there were 

other outstanding judgments against Player; 

(ii) The alleged consideration from Tattersall is dubious; 

a. Although the Tattersall Loan Agreement provides that he would 

loan $300,000 as a first instalment, and $600,000 in total, it appears 

that only $10,000 was contemporaneously advanced into the BMO 

Costellos Account, and Costellos repaid him $27,500 in October 

2017; 

b. Tattersall represented in an email to the Trustee that he “loaned” 

Player $325,000 in winter 2015, which was about a year and a half 

prior to the Tattersall Loan Agreement. The Trustee has no 

corroboration for this alleged 2015 loan;   
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(iii)There is a lack of formality and document integrity: 

a. Player prepared the Tattersall Loan Agreement, without the 

assistance of counsel; 

b. The Tattersall Share Assignment and the 2018 Amending 

Agreement purport a loan by Tattersall in the sum of $850,000; 

which are false statements as to consideration; 

c. The alleged transaction appears to have been carried out in haste and 

in a commercially unusual sequence; namely the Tattersall Share 

Assignment took place on the same day contemporaneously with the 

Tattersall Loan Document, prior to any alleged advancement of 

funds; 

d. Tattersall has not registered any financing statement against Player 

pursuant to the PPSA, and as far as the Trustee is aware, does not 

appear to have made any formal demands for repayment or issued 

any notices under the BIA or PPSA;  

e. It appears that there may have been a contemporaneous advance 

from “Wallwin” of $150,000; however, there is no mention of 

“Wallwin” in the Tattersall Loan Agreement; 

(iv) There has been secrecy surrounding the transaction, including Tattersall 

failing to disclose Costellos’ October 2017 payment of $27,500 in his proofs 

of claim, and the significant discrepancies between the First Proof of Claim 

and the Second Proof of Claim; 
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(d) There are concerns with the bona fides of the 198 Share Purchase Agreement: 

(i) It took place after the Interim Receivership Order, while there was a pending 

bankruptcy application against Player, and less than 2 weeks prior to 

Player’s examination under s. 163 of the BIA; 

(ii) As noted above, the bona fides of Tattersall’s underlying “security” is 

questionable; 

(iii) There has been secrecy surrounding this transaction. Notably, Jarvis failed 

to disclose same in his application material. Furthermore, Player failed to 

disclose same at his examination under s. 163 of the BIA or in the course of 

his proposal; 

(iv) The manner of “closing” this transaction appears to lack any “air of 

commercial reality”. Although the 198 Share Purchase Agreement provided 

that 198 would pay Tattersall $350,000 by certified funds on closing, the 

transaction purportedly closed on the basis of a promissory note whereby 

Noble House agreed to pay “John T Wallwin Holdings Limited” and 

Tattersall $350,000, secured by a “first charge condo loan” on certain units 

of the 3 Crescent Property (registered owners 220 and 230) and guarantees 

from Jarvis, John Jarvis and Remax North Country Realty Inc., and 

Tattersall simultaneously paid Noble House $175,000. Furthermore, there 

are no charges registered in favour of Tattersall or “Wallwin” reflected in 

the abstracts of title for the 3 Crescent Property (at Schedule “8” herein); 

(v) Notwithstanding this alleged transaction giving “ownership” of Costellos to 

198, Player continued to use funds from the BMO Costellos Account for 

personal expenses; 
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(e) Player has represented that he has an interest in the Cautioned Properties, in the 

course of his Proposal, and elsewhere; 

(f) There is a lack of any clear or cohesive formal arrangement between Jarvis, Player 

and any of their affiliated entities, which appear to be intermingled; 

(g) From November 2017 (i.e. two months prior to the bankruptcy application against 

Player) to June 2018, Costellos made payments to entities related to Jarvis in the 

sum of $244,006. Furthermore, from April 16 to July 16, 2018, during the proposal 

period of Player, there were wire transfers totaling $246,000 to unknown recipients 

from the Costellos BMO Account. These funds have not been accounted for;  

(h) The First Consortium Mortgage and the Brennan Mortgage were registered, in the 

face of the Interim Receivership Order, in the aggregate sum of $4,135,000, and the 

Second Consortium Mortgage was registered during the Proposal in the sum of 

$4,745,000, all against the Penetanguishene Property (registered owner - 

Costellos), the 2049 Horseshoe Property (registered owner - 192), and the 2019 

Horseshoe Property (registered owner - 198). There has not been any accounting 

for these funds; and 

(i) It defies commercial logic for Player to guarantee the First Consortium Mortgage, 

the Brennan Mortgage, and the Second Consortium Mortgage, if he did not have 

any interest in those financings, or the affiliated properties and entities. 

49. In view of the above, the Trustee seeks an order maintaining the cautions on title to the 

Cautioned Properties, so that it can continue to investigate Player’s involvement and interest 

therein and take appropriate action to realize on same, for the benefit of Player’s creditors. 
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50. All of which is respectfully reported, this 4th day of May 2020. 

BDO CANADA LIMITED 
In its capacity as Trustee of William Player  
and not in its personal capacity 

Per: 

_________________________ 
Gary Cerrato, CIRP, LIT 
Senior Manager, Vice President 
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District of Ontario 
Division No. 03-Barrie 

Court File No. 31-2362647 
Estate File No. 31-2362647

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

(BANKRUPTCY COURT)

THE HONOURABLE 

JUSTICE PENNY

)
)
)

TUESDAY THE 8th 

DAY OF JANUARY, 2019

IN THE MATTER OF THE PROPOSAL OF WILLIAM PLAYER 
of the Town of MINESING, in the County of SIMCOE, 

in the Province of ONTARIO

ORDER

THIS MOTION made by Mark Abbott for an order pursuant to section 14.04 of the 

Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, R.S.C., 1985, c. B-3, as amended (the “BIA”), was heard 

this day at 330 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

ON READING the Amended Notice of Motion of Mark Abbott dated December 18, 

2018 and the Affidavits of Mark Abbott affirmed August 1,2018 and December 13, 2018 

and being advised by counsel of the consent of Mark Abbott, Morgan & Partners Inc. 

(“MPI”) and John Morgan to the form and content of this order,

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that MPI be removed as Trustee in Bankruptcy or 

Licensed Insolvency Trustee in the bankruptcy estates of William Player bearing Estate 

File No.: 31-2362647 and Joanne Harpell bearing Estate File No.: 31-2419983 and, 

effective as at the date of this order, replaced by BDO Canada Limited. For greater 

certainty, this order is made without any findings or determination of wrongdoing by MPI

TAB 1
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or John Morgan. A duplicate copy of this order shall be filed in the Bankruptcy of Joanne 

Harpell bearing Estate File No.: 31-2419983.

2. THIS COURT ORDERS that MPI shall comply with its duties pursuant to the BIA, 

including section 36(1) of the BIA.

3. THIS COURT ORDERS that MPI shall continue to hold the payment made in 

connection with the amended proposal of William Player dated July 9, 2018 subject to 

further order of this Court or consent of Ray Jarvis, Fuller Landau Group Inc. in its capacity 

as Interim Receiver of the assets of Mr. Player pursuant to the Order of Justice Conway 

dated February 22, 2018 as amended by the Amended Order of Justice Hainey dated 

April 6, 2018, and MPI.

4. THIS COURT ORDERS that the action styled Mark Abbott v. William Player et al. 

and bearing court file number CV-18-602482 (the “Action”) is discontinued as against 

Mr. John Morgan and MPI on a without costs, with prejudice basis. A duplicate copy of 

this order shall be filed in the Action.

5. THIS COURT ORDERS that Mark Abbott has leave to file a fresh as amended 

statement of claim in the Action.

**"8NT°

JAN 1 0 ZOW

PER'PAR
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1987 CarswellOnt 2388
Supreme Court of Ontario (High Court of Justice)

R. v. Player

1987 CarswellOnt 2388, [1987] O.J. No. 1211, 4 W.C.B. (2d) 76

Her Majesty The Queen v. William Player

Callaghan A.C.J.H.C.

Judgment: July 7, 1987
Docket: None given.

Counsel: M.D. Segal, for Crown
D. Cousins, for Accused

Subject: Criminal

Callaghan A.C.J.H.C.:

1      I propose to state briefly my reasons for my disposition of this matter, Mr. Player; and you may remain seated. I want you
to listen to these reasons because they relate more directly to you than anybody else in this court room.

2      The accused, William Player, has pleaded guilty to 35 counts of fraud arising out of his real estate activities in the years
1980, 1981 and 1982.

3      These charges arise from what can only be described as the massive abuse by Mr. Player of certain trust companies and their
subsidiaries. The trust companies in question are Seaway Trust, Greymac Trust, and Crown Trust, all of which are regulated
under the Loan and Trust Corporations Act of Ontario and the Loan Act of Canada. The evidence before me, by way of agreed
statement, establishes many and varied violations of this regulatory scheme.

4      The size of the various frauds is, in aggregate, staggering. Mr. Player has pleaded guilty to counts involving in excess
of $200,000,000.00. The various frauds, as indicated, were perpetrated over a period of two to three years. Each fraud was
complex and the result of a sophisticated degree of planning. The frauds involved manipulation of others and many nominees
were used in the course of their perpetration.

5      While Mr. Player was involved with others who acted as principals to a certain degree, there is no doubt on the material that
has been filed and admitted that in relation to the counts before the court he was a prime mover, if not the directing mind in each.

6      Now I do not intend to review the evidence in relation to each count as that was clearly stated on the record in the agreed
statement; however, I wish to note for the purposes of these reasons the general modus operandi of Mr. Player so that the
disposition which I am about to make of this matter can be read in that context.

7      It appears from what I have heard today that Mr. Player and those associated with him extracted funds from one or more
publicly regulated companies and used those funds for their own benefit. This was generally accomplished by using non-arm's
length 'flips'. A 'flip', as I understand it, is a sale of real property immediately following its purchase. The purpose of a 'flip'
is to effect a false price increase. The victims in this affair, those companies that I mentioned a moment ago, were publicly
regulated companies who were permitted by law to grant up to 75 per cent of the market value of the property in mortgages.
Thus, following the 'flip', the artificially increased value of the real property was used as the basis for seeking mortgage loans
in respect of the property, purportedly, to finance its acquisition. These mortgage loans provided most of the funds that Mr.
Player and those working with him used for their own benefit. Nominees were used from time to time by Mr. Player to conceal
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the extent of his involvement in the transactions. On occasion, rather than providing a mortgage loan, the trust company or its
subsidiary or affiliated company would purchase a flipped property outright. In other transactions, Mr. Player's nominee would
purchase the property himself and sell it to Mr. Player, taking back a mortgage, which would then be sold to the trust company.
There were various methods of implementing this scheme.

8      The results of the investigation into this matter, which were placed before the court this morning, revealed that during
the relevant time period, the size of these transactions grew as Mr. Player engaged in additional transactions to keep mortgage
payments up. Mortgage payments to the victims of these transactions were often in arrears. Subsequent transactions were then
designed to satisfy the financial needs established in earlier deals. As Crown counsel put it in his remarks to me today, what
was involved took on a snowball effect as these transactions became larger and larger in order to satisfy Mr. Player's needs for
expansion. The obligations undertaken in the initial transactions culminated in the Cadillac Fairview transaction.

9      I wish to review briefly the facts of the last-mentioned transaction; they are of staggering proportions. This particular
transaction involved in excess of 10,000 apartment units in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto. They were being sold by
an arm's-length seller, Cadillac Fairview Corporation for $270,000,000.00 to the Greymac organization of companies. The sale
took place on November 5th, 1982. That very same day, the units were re-sold for $292,500,000.00 to Kilderkin Investments
Limited, a company owned and operated by Mr. Player and treated by him as his own personal property. At the same time, Mr.
Player paid an additional twenty million to secure Greymac's promise to remain liable on pre-existing mortgages to the Cadillac
Fairview Corporation. That very same day Mr. Player purportedly re-sold the units for $500,000,000.00 to Arab investors.
To help finance the Cadillac Fairview transaction, approximately $152,000,000.00 in mortgage advances were obtained from
Seaway, Greymac and Crown Trust. There was no real purchase of $500,000,000.00; that transaction was a fraudulent one.

10      The sale of 10,000 Toronto apartment units involved in excess of 25,000 individual tenants living in those buildings. It
was the largest single residential sale in this country. It generated a great deal of interest on the part of affected tenants and also
generated great interest in the real estate world and in the Legislature. As a result of this transaction, the Province passed the
Act to Amend the Loan and Trust Corporations Act on December 21st, 1982. Pursuant to new provisions, on January 7th, 1983,
the management of the trust companies, I mentioned above, passed into the hands of court-appointed receivers.

11      Now there is no question on the material before me that Mr. Player personally profited. It should be understood, however,
that under the supervision of the Supreme Court of Ontario, receivers have pursued him, his assets have been claimed and sold,
and significant recoveries have been made over time. As he stands before me today, he has been stripped of those assets which
he acquired fraudulently.

12      It is common ground between the prosecution and the defence that through the efforts of the court-appointed receivers,
there is no 'stash' of money available to Mr. Player. That, of course, is a matter of significance.

13      I think it has to be recognized that trust companies accept deposits from the public; and also they have traditionally invested
a substantial portion of their shareholders' and depositors' funds in mortgages. The victims in this matter, therefore, are not only
the trust companies, but their depositors, the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation, which in the last analysis is the tax-payer,
and indirectly, the whole banking and trust company community and its reputation for integrity with the public at large.

14      It is within this context that I must approach what is commonly called a joint submission. At this hearing I have had
the benefit of such a submission from both counsel. I welcome such assistance particularly where, as here, counsel are able to
arrive at a consensus as to the appropriate sentence in the case.

15      I have indicated in the past in other cases in this court room, that this court will endeavour to give effect to such
representations unless they are contrary to principle or appear unreasonable on their face. At the same time, I recognize, as did
counsel, that this court is not bound by these recommendations, if in my view they do not represent what the offender should
receive for these offences committed in the circumstances under which they were committed. Accordingly, it is my function to
examine the joint recommendation in light of this principle.
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16      It has to be recognized that these were business frauds. The term "commercial fraud" is used to cover various kinds of
activities which may result in charges of obtaining money by falsehood, trick or deception. In this case, at its simplest, lending
institutions were induced to lend money against the security of property, which was grossly over-valued for the purposes of
the loans. It is not a novel form of fraud: I think at some stage in the proceedings it was referred to as an "Oklahoma". It has
been with us for a long time. It is not an uncommon fraud in this jurisdiction, as evidenced by the ReMor, Astra Trust and
Argosy incidents of the recent past.

17      In this case, it is the cumulative size of these frauds that is overwhelming. In addition, they were sophisticated, they were
calculated, they were premeditated, and as indicated earlier, they were carried out over a lengthy period of time.

18      The fundamental principles of sentencing are based on four concepts: deterrence general; deterrence personal;
rehabilitation; and retribution. By 'retribution' I do not mean "an eye for an eye and a tooth for a tooth", I am simply referring
to the community expressing its abhorrence at the conduct involved in a particular case.

19      Both counsel have agreed that the governing principle in a case of this sort is general deterrence; in other words, the
sentence must be exemplary and sufficient so that those in similar circumstances, in the words of Mr. Justice McDermid, of the
Alberta Court of Appeal, recognize that the game is not worth the candle.

20      The fundamental principle was established by Chief Justice Gale in Rex v. Foran, where he stated as follows:

As far as deterrence to others is concerned, the members of the business community should be put on notice that if they
break their trust to the public, they can expect to receive proper punishment for having done so.

21      That principle was reiterated in the Court of Appeal in 1981 in R. v. McNamara, when it was stated that:

In the circumstances of this case, general deterrence was the paramount factor to which effect must be given in the
imposition of sentence. It is vital to the interests of the business community as well as the interests of society that leaders
of the business community should act honestly in their dealings.

I am not so sure that the business community would say that Mr. Player was a leader in that community, but he certainly played
in the league and he certainly has perpetrated a fraud of enormous proportions.

22      While cases involving substantial frauds usually attract sentences in the range of five to six years, as counsel have
stated, there are no cases which in any degree approach this case for the enormity of the amounts involved and the nature of
the transactions and the method by which the frauds were perpetrated.

23      To effect general deterrence in these circumstances, I accept counsels' submissions that an exemplary sentence is
appropriate. There is an obligation on the court to do everything it can to ensure the public right to honest dealings in banking
and trust business, which is the cornerstone, or one of the corner-stones, upon which our free enterprise system is maintained.
Public confidence in the integrity of that system must be protected.

24      It must also be recognized that notwithstanding the plea of guilty, and substantial recoveries by court-appointed receivers,
there is an enormous, almost incalculable cost which will be borne either by the depositors of the various trust companies
involved or the tax-payers as a result of these particular frauds, which cannot be overlooked.

25      Now the other principles of sentencing that I mentioned must be viewed. Mr. Player no doubt is a candidate for
rehabilitation. He is young, he is intelligent, and he is blessed with great energy and great imagination. This is no place to
lecture, but I wonder what he would have done if he had directed all those talents along legitimate lines? By pleading guilty
he is saving the state considerable expense and his co-operation with the authorities in these matters are factors in his favour.
Certainly by pleading guilty at an early stage in these proceedings, and having regard to the apology he publicly made in the
course of these proceedings, I can only conclude that he is remorseful and he is prepared to accept his punishment.
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26      I must attach some importance to the factors of rehabilitation. I must attach some weight to the factor of personal deterrence
and retribution. But I reiterate, the factor which dictates this sentence, the factor to which the greatest weight must be attached,
is the principle of general deterrence.

27      Weighing those various principles in the imposition of any sentence is a difficult matter; but approaching them and
reviewing them as best I can in the light of the circumstances of this case, I have come to the conclusion that the joint
submission is consistent with principle and in the circumstances is not unreasonable. The Court of Appeal has indicated that
such submissions should not be ignored unless there is good and valid reason. I can find no good and valid reasons for rejecting
the sentence, the totality of which is 15 years. Accordingly, William Player - stand up.

28      I am sentencing you on counts one to 33 to six years in penitentiary, such sentences to be served concurrently. On counts
34 and 35, which relate primarily to the Cadillac Fairview transaction, probably the largest fraud we have ever seen in this
country, I am sentencing you to nine years on each count to run concurrently to each other but consecutively to the sentence
imposed for counts one to 33, for a total of 15 years.

29      As to the contempt charge, I accept your apology on behalf of the court. I am of the view that time served to date is
adequate punishment for that offence. I note the contempt arises from matters covered in the indictment and accordingly the
balance of that sentence should run concurrently with the sentences imposed today, which last-mentioned sentences will run
from today's date.

30      Remove Mr. Player, please.

31      ---The accused leaves prisoner's box

32      HIS LORDSHIP: Just hold it, Mr. Player.

33      Is an order for protective custody required?

34      MR. COUSINS: Certain arrangements are in place, as I understand. My friend could have more information on that.

35      HIS LORDSHIP: All right. Thank you.

36      MR. COUSINS: If it is required we can----

37      HIS LORDSHIP: I can be spoken to if one is required.
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